
HAYS AREA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 1507 MAIN, HAYS, KS 

APRIL 21, 2014 
6:30 P.M.       

 

   
1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN. 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA. 

A. Minutes of the regular meeting of February 17, 2014. 

  Action:  Consider approving the minutes of the 2/17/14 meeting. 

 

3. NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS: 

A. Update on contract with Kendig Keast Collaborative for Rewrite of Zoning Regulations  

B. Distribution and review of iPad usage for agendas. 

C. Upcoming training Opportunities.  

             

4. OFF AGENDA ITEMS/COMMUNICATIONS. 

 A.  City Commission action and planning and development updates on Planning 
Commission related issue. 

B.  Other. 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT: 

 

 

 

If you will be unable to attend please contact the Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office at 785- 628-7310.  
Thank   you.  Any person with a disability and needing special accommodations to attend this meeting should 
contact the Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office (785-628-7310) 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting 
time.  Every attempt will be made to accommodate any requests for assistance. 



 

 1 

DRAFT 

HAYS AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  

CITY HALL IN COMMISSION CHAMBERS  

FEBRUARY 17, 2014 

MINUTES  

6:30 P.M.  

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:    The Hays Area Planning Commission met in regular session 

Monday, February 17, 2014 at 6:30 p.m. in Commission Chambers at City Hall.  

Acting Chairman Paul Phillips declared that a quorum was present and called the 

meeting to order.    

 

Roll Call: 

  

Present:    Paul Phillips               Pam Rein                                   Travis Rickford 

                  Tom Denning           Jake Glover                               Matthew Wheeler         

 

Absent:    Larry Gould               Lou Caplan                               Jim Fouts 

 

City Staff in attendance:  John Bird, City Attorney, Toby Dougherty, City Manager, 

I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works, John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works, 

Jesse Rohr, Superintendent of Planning, Inspection and Enforcement,  Bernie Kitten, 

Director of Utilities, Nicholas Willis, Stormwater/Water Conservation Superintendent, 

and Jason Riegal, Conservation Specialist and Linda Bixenman, Administrative 

Assistant.  

 

Paul Phillips explained that the first item is to make changes to the agenda.  The 

City Manager will update the commission on water issues.  The rezoning and final 

plat of the Geist Addition will be done together in sequence. 

 

2.      MINUTES:  Travis Rickford moved, Pam Rein seconded the motion to approve 
the minutes as presented from the January 20, 2014 meeting.  There were no 

additions or corrections to those minutes. 

 
Vote:   

 

AYES:         Paul Phillips               Pam Rein                                   Travis Rickford 
                  Tom Denning           Jake Glover                               Matthew Wheeler  

 

5. (A)        UPDATE FROM THE CITY MANAGER ON THE R9 RANCH:  Toby Dougherty, 

City Manager, came before the commission to update the commission on the 

water issues.  He handed out a packet of information that included past water 

studies and the information on the R9 Ranch as a potential water supply.   

 



 

 2 

The City Commission approved an ordinance directing him to begin the regulatory 

paperwork to transfer water from the R9 Ranch to the City of Hays.  He identified 

the ranch as the most viable, long-term water solution for the City.     

 

The City will begin the process of filing an application with the Division of Water 

Resources to change the use of water and change its point of diversion.    It will 

trigger the State’s Water Transfer Act, a never-before used legal provision, that 

kicks in when 2,000 acre feet or more of water will be moved more than 35 miles 

from the source.   

 

The transfer act will require a public hearing and evidence to justify the transfer.  

The hearing panel will include the State’s Chief Engineer, the Director of the Kansas 

Water Division Office, and the Secretary of the Kansas Department of Health and 

Environment.  It may be there is a change in the regulatory side that the water 

may not be available.  He explained that this will be a lengthy project depending 

on who intervenes.     

 

Paul Phillips asked if it will be open to litigation as the 3 member panel determines 

their decision.  Toby Dougherty answered that it is open to litigation on either side.  

John Bird, answered that it is anticipated and if not that would be great.     

 

Jake Glover voiced his appreciation to Toby Dougherty of the informed update.  

He asked what duties and responsibilities are expected of the commission and 

how they can help.   Toby Dougherty answered that this is in the preliminary stages 

and their understanding where they are in the process is important.  It is not a done 

deal and from a governing point it is business as usual.  

 

Toby Dougherty pointed out there were two questions and the first question needs 

to be answered before the second as follows: 

 

First  - Can we bring up water from the ranch? 

Second  - Should we bring water up from the ranch?     

 

3 (A).        PUBLIC HEARING FOR REZONING OF THE PROPOSED GEIST ADDTION FROM 

“A-L” AGRICULTURE TO “C-O” OFFICE & INSTITUTION DISTRICT:  Jesse Rohr presented 

a power point presentation that included the site map and surrounding zoning 

districts of the proposed development of the Geist Addition located south of 22nd 

Street between Canterbury and Wheatland.  The property is an island of un-

annexed territory with development around it that should be brought into the City 

limits for orderly development.  The developer has submitted applications for the 
rezoning, final plat and annexation. The final plat reflects four proposed 

commercial lots.   

    

The rezoning request is to change the zoning classification from “A-L” Agriculture to 

“C-O” Office and Institution District.  This is a good fit for the property because of 
the compatible zoning districts surrounding it as follows: “C-O” to the north (Hays 

Medical Center); “C-O” (Medical Office Buildings) and “R-2” single family to the 



 

 3 

west; “R-2” single family and “R-4” multi-family across the alley to the south; “R-3” 

two-family to the east with multi-family further to the east.   

 

The adopted comprehensive plan future land use map reflects the area as 

medium density residential and by definition the “C-O” zoning classification would 
be compatible with this area. Per Section 71-434 of the zoning regulations, “Uses in 

this district are intended to be compatible with adjoining residential districts.”  

There are similarities to the land uses in the area. 

 

He stated the zoning uses allowed by right and exception in the “C-O” zoning 

district.  The exception would be that a special use permit would be required from 

the Board of Zoning if there was a request for residential use. 

 

The necessary right-of-way dedication is reflected on the plat; particularly the 20’ 

needed adjacent to Canterbury Drive.   The full 50’ of Canterbury right-of-way 

dedication is part of the plat.   

 

Per the inquiry of Tom Denning at the last meeting, if there should be access 

control; the city did require access control requirements and restrictions per the 

corridor management policy that are reflected on the final plat at the intersections 

along  Canterbury and 22nd and Wheatland and 22nd Street. 

 

 There is a drainage way within the 100 year flood plain that has been dedicated 

and will be preserved through the platting process.   The drainage area would be 

maintained by the City Parks Department along with the remainder of the 

drainage area already maintained by them.  City Parks Department has reviewed 

and agreed with the proposal as submitted. 

 

The Utility Advisory Committee has reviewed and agreed with the proposed plat.  

The proposed plat includes all required easements. 

 

The property is proposed to be annexed to the city that would force upon it the 

Code of Ordinances by the City of Hays, Kansas.    The public utilities are in place 

including public water and sewer.  Utilities staff has reviewed and agreed with the 

proposal as submitted.  

 

Jesse Rohr presented the options that the commission could consider.  Staff’s 

recommendation is to approve the rezoning request and final plat as submitted. 

 

Tom Denning asked how the rezoning would affect the existing home on lot one; 
asking if they would have to apply for a special use permit.   Jesse Rohr explained 

that it would remain as existing, non-conforming and allowed to stay as long as the 

use is the same.  If the use would change, then they would have to meet the 

requirements of the “C-O” zoning district.    

 
Paul Phillips explained that per the Kansas Open Meetings Act, that the first part of 

the hearing would be a public hearing for the rezoning request.  Then the public 



 

 4 

hearing would be closed for the commission members to discuss this request 

among themselves to approve or disapprove Staff Finding of Fact and a 

substantive motion of their recommendation to the governing body.  

 

He asked for comments from the audience.  

 

Martha Lang, property owner of 2403 E 21st, came before the commission to ask 

what development is proposed for these lots and if the property has been sold by 

Mr. Geist.  Paul Phillips and Jesse Rohr explained that the Planning Commission has 

to determine their action on consideration of all the potential allowed uses and 

exceptions listed within the “C-O” zoning district.  They are not approving the plans 

for the lots.  

 

She asked why, “they as property owners abutting the subject property from the 

alley, couldn’t know what is planned for development in case they need to 

protest”.   

 

Galen Romme, Romme Real Estate, agent for the developer, came before the 

commission to explain that one lot is under contract for a government office 

building.   There are currently no buyers for the other three lots.    This is the reason 

they would not know what development will be on those lots.   The reason they are 

rezoning all the lots is to stay compatible with the land uses.  

 

Mrs. Lang asked which lot would be for the proposed government office building.  

Galen Romme explained it would be the proposed lot three.   

 

Paul Phillips explained that the planning commission is only approving the rezoning 

not the plans proposed for any of the lots. 

 

There were no more comments from the audience. 

 

Paul Phillips closed the public hearing for the commission to discuss the request for 

the rezoning.  The commission members will make a motion to approve or 

disapprove staff findings of fact and a substantive motion for their 

recommendation to the governing body based on any of the listed factors for 

consideration.  He read them to the commission.   

    

Paul Phillips entertained a motion for Staff Findings of Fact.    

 

Jake Glover moved, Tom Denning seconded the motion to approve Staff Findings 

of Fact.   

 

Vote:   

 

AYES:         Paul Phillips               Pam Rein                                   Travis Rickford 
                  Tom Denning           Jake Glover                               Matthew Wheeler  

 



 

 5 

 

Jake Glover moved, Pam Rein seconded the motion to recommend to the 

governing body to change the zoning classification of the proposed Geist Addition 

from “A-L” Agriculure to “C-O” Office and Institution District based on the following 

factors:  The zoning and uses of property nearby and staff findings of fact.   

 

Jake Glover explained to the audience that the “C-O” rezoning of this island of 

property would be in the best interest of the city to protect the city from potential 

misuse of the land as it is currently zoned.  The “C-O” zoning classification would 

better align with what is already there. 

 

Vote:   

 

AYES:         Paul Phillips               Pam Rein                                   Travis Rickford 

                  Tom Denning           Jake Glover                               Matthew Wheeler  

 

 

4 (A).        CONSIDER THE FINAL PLAT OF THE GEIST ADDITION:  Jesse Rohr explained 

that the final plat meets the required easements, access control, and setback lines 

that are in place and it captures the drainage easement that is within the 100 year 

flood plain.    

 
Pam Rein moved, Travis Rickford seconded the motion to recommend to the 

governing body for approval of the final plat of the Geist Addition.  

 
Vote:   

 
AYES:         Paul Phillips               Pam Rein                                   Travis Rickford 

                  Tom Denning           Jake Glover                               Matthew Wheeler  

 

Jesse Rohr explained that the annexation, rezoning and final plat will go before the 

City Commission Work Session on March 6, 2014 and for final action at the meeting 

on March 13, 2014. 

 

3. (B)        PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER CHANGES TO THE LANDSCAPE AND 

IRRIGATION REGULATIONS WITHIN THE CITY ORDINANCE CHAPTER 71, ARTICLE VI:   

Nicholas Willis, Stormwater/Water Conservation Superintendent, presented a 

power point presentation to explain the update on the water situation as part of 

the public hearing.   He presented a chart reflecting the measurement of a city 

well and a well at the Smoky Hill River well fields that are at the lowest water level 
on record since the droughts in 1991 and 1985 respectively.   

 

He provided the status of the December water level reading of Cedar Bluff 

Reservoir to show that there is no water available for release.  There were 1,186 

acre feet released in early 2013 to fill the Smoky Hill Well fields.  With the drought, 
the well fields are again declining.    

 



 

 6 

He presented a chart reflecting the U.S. Seasonal Drought Outlook that reflected 

continued drought.   A chart reflected precipitation averages. Dry Springs pose a 

great concern of no rain water to replenish the aquifer. 

 

He pointed out that Hays is significantly larger than during prior bad droughts.  The 

in-town private wells are in very poor shape.  There is no state action to protect 

senior water rights from heavy irrigation use of alluvial aquifers feeding Big Creek, 

Cedar Bluff and the Smoky Hill River.    

 

He presented a list of what the city is doing to conserve water supplies.   

 

• Increase water rates for outdoor use 

• Replacement of city-owned fixtures 

• $100K for toilet rebates approved 

• $45K for urinal rebates approved 

• Propose adoption of Green Building Code 

• Distribution system leak detection 
• Hiring of Water Conservation Specialist  

 

He presented an extrapolation of streets in different areas of town to reflect that 

there is greater water usage in the newer developments pointing out the figures of 

increased water usage as development continues throughout the city. 

 

He explained that from the rules and regulations of the Kansas Water 

Appropriation Action for water wells by the chief engineer, the hydrologic units 

shall be closed to further new surface water and groundwater appropriations 

except for domestic use, temporary permits and term permits for 5 years or less.   

 

He explained what would trigger the compliance to the proposed regulations: 

 
• Construction of new Irrigation System 

• Increase in irrigated area greater than 400 square feet 
• Connection of existing irrigation to City’s potable system 

• Alterations resulting in changes requiring more irrigation than already 

required. 

 

He explained what is not being regulated: 
 

• Irrigation with non-domestic water rights 

• Participation in City Rebate Programs 

• Public Properties 

• Replacement of 50% of system without increasing irrigation needs 

• Replacement and movement of heads without increasing irrigation needs 

 

The new proposed regulations would allow the following:    
    

• All Properties:  Maximum irrigated area of 10,000 square feet  



 

 7 

• Residential Properties:  Maximum 5,000 square feet of turf of which 2,000 

square feet of cool season turf and balance in xeriscape  

• Commercial Requirements – allow 5,000 square feet of irrigated turf.  No 

more than 30% of 2,000 sq feet cool season turf and the minimum 30% of 

xeriscaping. 

 

Overhead irrigation shall not be allowed within 5 feet of driveways, sidewalks and 

hardscape to prevent water runoff on windy days.  Irrigation system plans must be 

submitted for approval with the lawn sprinkler irrigation permit application.  

 

Language was added to accommodate shelter belt plantings.  

 

It was city staff’s recommendation to recommend these regulations as written to 

the governing body. 

 

Paul Phillips asked if there was anyone in the audience for comments. 

 

Darren Rueschhoff, owner of Darren’s Lawn Service, stated they he liked the buffer 

zone around the parking areas and sidewalks; although he thought 5 feet was to 

extreme for aesthetic reasons.  He suggested three or four feet would be more 

aesthetically pleasing for the design.  He asked about the plan if a landscaping 

and irrigation plan to be submitted at that time.  

 

Jesse Rohr explained that the trigger is permanent irrigation system.   He explained 

that the landscape plans will only apply to commercial areas, not residential 

areas.  The irrigation plans will need to be filed for all zoning classifications with the 

installation of an irrigation system.  They will have to comply with the City’s 

regulations.  

 

Jake Glover asked for more clarification regarding the 5 foot distance 

requirement.  Travis Rickford asked about the different irrigation heads and if there 

is a significant cost difference of having it 3 feet versus five feet from the hard 

surface.   He preferred it be 3 feet.   Jesse Rohr explained that the type of heads 

being used would weigh in on the cost.  One of the contractors stated that there 

would be a significant cost difference.   

 

Paul Phillips stated that the reason for the 5 foot distance is to prevent from getting 

a ticket to ultimately prevent water from running down the street.   

 

There were several suggestions by several of the planning commission that would 

entail percentages. 

 

I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works, explained that if the determination had to be 
done as percentages, this would be a mathematical process that would not work 

as a very efficient method.   

 

Pam Rein stated that she thought the five foot distance should remain.   



 

 8 

 

Nick Willis explained that the Planning Commission’s realm of jurisdiction and the 

Building Trades Board area of jurisdiction would go hand in hand for water 

conservation.   The Building Trades Board has recommended to the City 

Commission to adopt the supplement of the 2012 green plumbing and 

mechanical code that would include regulations on the amount of pressure on the 

irrigation heads.    

 

It was pointed out that there could be a drip irrigation system and foliage next to 

the hard surface; just not overhead sprinklers.   

 

The commission chose to keep the regulations as written.      

 

Matthew Wheeler moved, Pam Rein seconded the motion to recommend to the 

governing body to approve the ordinance as presented for changes to the 

Landscape and irrigation regulations within the City Ordinance, Chapter 71, Article 

VI.   

 

Vote:   

 
AYES:         Paul Phillips               Pam Rein                                   Travis Rickford 

                  Tom Denning           Jake Glover                               Matthew Wheeler  

 

5. (B)   CITY COMMISSION ACTION AND PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT UPDATES ON 

PLANNING COMMISSSION RELATED ISSUES:  None.  

 

6. OTHER:  ZONING REWRITE CONSULTANT   Jesse Rohr voiced appreciation to 

Matthew Wheeler and Travis Rickford for their assistance on the selection 

committee for a search for a consultant for the rezoning rewrite.  

 

Matthew Wheeler commended the city staff committee members of I.D. Creech, 

Jesse Rohr and Nick Willis, for their great job of communication and keeping the 

scheduled meetings on track.   

 

The committee selected three of what they thought were the best of the nine 
proposals submitted for the project.  They conducted three interviews and 

selected Kendig Keast Collaborative of Sugar Land, Texas.  They were the most 
forward thinking and apply advanced modern technology.  

 

7.        OTHER:  41ST RECONSTRUCTION:   John Braun explained the process of the 

reconstruction of 41st Street as it is set to begin on March 24, 2014.   He informed 

them of the public information open house meeting on March 11, 2014 at 5:30 

p.m. at KDOT on Frontier Road by the bypass.  Notification letters will be sent out of 

the public information meeting to the abutting property owners along the area 

being reconstructed.   
 



 

 9 

8.        OTHER:  13TH STREET FROM MAIN TO MILNER:   John Braun explained that the 

comprehensive plan identified 13th Street from Main to Milner as a gateway to 

downtown that needed aesthetic improvement.   The 2014 budget included funds 

for the design and construction of improvements to this section of 13th Street.   

 

The engineering consultant, Driggs Design Group PA of Hays will be available at 

the informational meeting on March 5, 2014 at 5:30 p.m. at Commission Chambers 

at City Hall.  Notification of the informational meeting will be sent to the nearby 

property owners.   

 

It will go before the City Commission Work Session on March 20, 2014 to present the 

concept and forward to the meeting for action.  If the project is approved it will be 

started in the year of 2015.   

 

9.      OTHER:  2014 STREET MAINTENANCE:  John Braun explained that bid for the 

respective 2014 Street Maintenance projects would be going before the City 

Commission for approval. The work would begin as soon as bids are approved. 

 

10.      OTHER:  WATERLINE PROJECT ON FORT STREET: John Braun explained the 

waterline project on Fort Street has begun. 

 

Adjournment:  Chairman Paul Phillips adjourned the meeting at 7:49 p.m.  

 

Submitted by:  Linda K. Bixenman, Administrative Assistant 

                          Planning, Inspection and Enforcement  

 

 

 

 

 



Elk Grove, California | Phoenix, Arozona | Sugar Land, Texas Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsir

Kendig Keast
COLLABORATIVE

POLICY

Review and Re-write of

Zoning and Subdivision Regulations
City of Hays, Kansas

January 10, 2014

I ASSOCIATION WITH

ENCODE-360, LLC






















	04-21-2014
	02-17-2014
	KKC - Policy to Practice

